
Resources and Transformation Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  107-117 Botchergate 

Carlisle  CA1 1RD
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

6 March 2018

To:  The Chair and Members of the Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Variation Sub-Committee

Agenda
CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY VARIATION SUB-COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Variation Sub-Committee will be held as follows: 

Date: Wednesday 14 March 2018
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Chair’s Room, Cumbria House, Botchergate, Carlisle, CA1 

1RD

Dawn Roberts
Corporate Director – Resources and Transformation 

NB A PRE-MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 9.30 AM IN THE CHAIRMAN’S ROOM AND 
ALL MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Lynn Harker
Direct Line: 01228 226364 / 07825340229
Email: lynn.harker@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



MEMBERSHIP

Mr N Hughes (Chair) - Cumbria County Council (Eden)
Ms C McCarron-Holmes (Vice-Chair) - Allerdale Borough Council
Mrs V Rees - South Lakeland District Council
Mrs J Riddle - Carlisle City Council
Mr C Whiteside - Cumbria County Council (Copeland)
Mr S Wielkopolski - Cumbria County Council (Barrow)

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/ 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/


A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1. Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2. Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3. Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority.

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4. Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.

5. Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.

6. Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge).

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

7. Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the authority; and

(b) Either – 



(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).

3  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.

4  MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting held on 10 November 2017 (copy enclosed).

5  SPECIALIST DENTAL SERVICES - PROPOSAL TO RELOCATE

To consider a report by the Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Adviser (copy enclosed).



CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY VARIATION SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Variation Sub-Committee held 
on Friday, 10 November 2017 at 10.00 am at Chairman's Room, Cumbria House, 
Carlisle, Cumbria. CA1 1RD

PRESENT:

Mr N Hughes (Chair)

Ms C McCarron-Holmes 
(Vice-Chair)

Mr S Wielkopolski

Officers in Attendance:-

Natalie Carman
Lynn Harker

- Clinical Director, Specialist Dentistry Services
- Senior Democratic Services Officer

Emma Hoyles
David Stephens

- Network Manager, Specialist Dentistry Services
- Strategic Policy & Scrutiny Advisor

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR

The County Council representatives elected a Chair of the Sub-Committee from 
amongst their members.

RESOLVED, that Mr N Hughes be elected Chair of the Sub-Committee for the 
ensuing year.

2 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

The District Council representatives elected a Vice-Chair of the Sub-Committee 
from amongst their members.

RESOLVED, that Ms C McCarron-Holmes be elected Vice-Chair of the 
Sub-Committee for the ensuing year.

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr M Hawkins, Mrs V Rees and 
Mrs J Riddle.

5

Agenda Item 4



4 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest on this occasion. 

5 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the meeting for any 
items of business.

6 TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Terms of Reference for the Cumbria Health Variation Sub-Committee were 
noted.

7 SPECIALIST DENTAL SERVICES - PROPOSAL TO RELOCATE

The Sub-Committee received a report from the Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Adviser 
regarding the proposal from the Cumbria Partnership Foundation Trust to close Flatt 
Walks Clinic and relocate patients and activity to Cleator Moor Health Centre. 

The background to the proposal was briefly outlined to members and the 
Sub-Committee were informed there were currently 128 patients that received their 
continuing care at Flatt Walks Clinic, which comprised of a mixture of special care 
adult patients, special care paediatric patients and also looked after children. 

Members were informed that Flatt Walks dental clinic had two surgeries on site and 
it was highlighted that the building was in need of a full refurbishment which it was 
anticipated would cost in the region of £25,000 per surgery.  The Sub-Committee 
noted that the dental surgeries at Flatt Walks had been risk assessed by the Trust’s 
Health and Safety Officer as not suitable for patients with mobility issues due to the 
location of the surgeries on the second floor and the lack of a reliable lift.

It was highlighted to members that the special care dental service had a large 
proportion of patients with mobility issues that did not allow them to attend general 
dental practice.  The Sub-Committee noted, therefore, the limitation in their facilities 
had an impact on patient waiting times as they had to wait to be allocated to clinics 
elsewhere in the county.  Members were informed that any refurbishment of the 
location would seek to address this issue but currently even if a surgery was 
allocated in a ground floor position the bathrooms were not wheelchair accessible.  
It was explained that this was a shared site, therefore, addressing this would not 
form part of the renovation.

6



The Sub-Committee were also informed that Flatt Walks had never had a reception 
facility which was manned completely within normal working hours.  The impact of 
this meant that if a patient walked in to make an enquiry or telephoned they could be 
met with empty rooms or an answer phone message.

Members noted that the service currently had spare clinical space in a new purpose 
built facility that was fully accessible (including to bariatric patients) within a short 
distance of Flatt Walks (Cleator Moor Health Centre - 4.0 miles).  The Sub-
Committee were also informed that the service also retained access to a dental 
surgery that was within the new build West Cumberland Hospital (WCH) (1.9 miles).  
It was highlighted that the clinic at the Hospital was owned by the Trust and only 
accessible three days per week.  It was also noted that as WCH was a secondary 
care facility a number of patients felt uncomfortable being treat at that location.

The Sub-Committee were informed that the proposed relocation of the surgery 
would not have a negative impact on journey time for the staff involved.  It was also 
noted that the proposed site at the Cleator Moor Health Centre was more accessible 
for vehicles and had a bus stop outside the premises.

A discussion took place regarding the proposed consultation process which would 
take place following the Sub-Committee meeting.  Members were informed that due 
to the small number of patients at the clinic the staff had forged good long-term 
relationships with them and their family/carers which would enable them to offer 
help to individuals who they felt would benefit from their support.

It was highlighted that engagement would be undertaken in a number of ways to suit 
the needs of individuals and would include face to face contact, pictorial 
communication and easy read format.  It was explained to members that the clinic 
also had a great deal of support from the Learning Support Team who would assist 
in the process.  Members suggested People First also be involved in the 
consultation process.  

The Sub-Committee agreed that the decision of the Sub-Committee would be 
deferred until after the consultation exercise.  Members requested that graphic 
examples and responses to the consultation be made available at the next meeting 
of the Sub-Committee.  

RESOLVED, that 

(1) the decision of the Sub-Committee be deferred until after 
completion of the consultation exercise;

(2) the Sub-Committee be reconvened on Monday 
26 February 2018 to consider whether the proposal 
constitutes a substantial service change.

The meeting ended at 10.40 am

7



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY - VARIATION SUB 
COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 14 March 2018

From: Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Adviser

SPECIALIST DENTAL SERVICES - PROPOSAL TO RELOCATE

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report contains a Proposal from the Cumbria Partnership Foundation Trust 
to close Flatt Walks Clinic and relocate patients and activity to Cleator Moor 
Health Centre as well as feedback following patient engagement

2.0 ISSUES FOR SCRUTINY

2.1 The Variation Sub Committee is asked to consider whether the proposal 
constitutes a substantial service change.

3.0 BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT 

3.1 The Sub Committee received a report on the 10th November 2017 from the 
Cumbria Partnership Foundation Trust setting out the details of, and rational for 
the relocation.  

3.2 The proposed consultation process which would take place was discussed and 
the Sub-Committee agreed that the decision of the Sub Committee would be 
deferred until after the consultation exercise.

3.3 The feedback following patient engagement is included at Appendix A  
3.4 In addition, Appendix B includes the Substantial Variation Protocol as agreed 

by the Health Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on the 15th October 2015.
3.5 At the meeting the sub-committee will have the opportunity to seek clarification 

on any issue from Cumbria Partnership Foundation Trust and following that will 
be asked to make decisions on whether it considers the change to be a 
substantial variation. 

3.6 If the committee decides that the proposed changes are not a substantial 
variation to the service then the changes can proceed without any further 
decisions by the full committee or any reference to the committee in the future.

3.7 If, however, the sub-committee decides that the proposed changes are a 
substantial variation then the proposal will be referred to the full committee to 
decide what it would consider to be proportionate consultation.

9

Agenda Item 5



3.8 In addition, if the sub-committee decides that the proposed changes are a 
substantial variation, then the committee will once again consider the proposals 
at a future meeting in light of the outcome of the consultation.  

March 2018

Appendices

Appendix A Presentation from the Cumbria Partnership Foundation Trust
Appendix B Cumbria Health Scrutiny Variation Protocol

Contact: 

David Stephens
Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Adviser
Cumbria County Council
david.stephens@cumbria.gov.uk

10

mailto:David.stephens@cumbria.gov.uk


Feedback Following Patient
Engagement relating to the
Proposal to close Flatt
Walks Clinic Health Centre

11



Our Concerns/Challenges with the
Current Facility

• Flatt Walks dental clinic has two surgeries on site and the building is
in need of a full refurbishment. The dental chairs are twenty years
old as are the furnishings. To refurbish this site would cost in the
region of £25,000 per surgery.

• The dental surgeries at Flatt Walks have been risk assessed by the
Trusts Health and Safety Officer as not suitable for patients with
mobility issues. This is because they are on the second floor of the
building and the lift is not reliable and in the event of a fire it would
be unable to be used.

• The special care dental service has a large proportion of patients
with mobility issues that do not allow them to attend general dental
practice. This limitation in our facilities has an impact on patient
waiting times as we have to wait to allocate them to clinics
elsewhere.

12



• Any refurbishment of this location would seek to address this issue but
currently even if a surgery was allocated in a ground floor position the
bathrooms are not wheelchair accessible. As this is a shared site
addressing this would not form part of our renovation.

• Flatt Walks has no reception capability currently and is not able to be
manned completely within normal working hours. This means if a patient
walks in to make an enquiry or phones they can be met with empty rooms
or an answer phone message.

13



What Does the Clinic Look Like?

14



15



Our Quality Impact Assessment
Domain Impact – positive or negative Indicator to measure impact?

Clinical outcomes

Positive

Reduce patient waiting times to treatment for some conditions as less
appointments required due to diagnostic radiography on site.

Quicker diagnosis of conditions

Waiting list weekly report showing decreased RTT.

Patient Safety

Positive

Treatment provided in a facility designed to be accessible with
increased access to mobility aids (e.g. hoist).

Access to physiotherapy service to support safe transfer of patients.

Patient satisfaction survey

Clinical Effectiveness

Positive

CPFT will have the increased ability to effectively deliver and develop
Specialist and Special Care Dentistry across Cumbria.

Streamlined care pathway in Allerdale/Copeland.

Identify more efficient ways of working, to reduce
wasted capacity.

Decreased waiting times.

Patient Experience

Positive

Less confusion for patients as appointments can be completed in fewer
clinics. Some patients currently having to be seen in multiple locations.

Better service to patients as reception available and phone enquiries
can be answered immediately.

Negative- There is a possibility that patients may have to travel further
to access care.

Less missed appointments

Patient satisfaction survey

Number of complaints received by CPFT and NHS
England.

Workforce planning and staff

Positive

CPFT will have the increased ability to develop a more skilled workforce
(Team).

Negative – change of base could lead to increased travel

Workforce planning/Appraisal PDP

Staff Consultation process/HR support

Training and education
Positive

Greater ability to support development for clinical staff as new ways of
working will encourage full use of staff with additional qualifications.

Staff satisfaction (NHS staff survey) and feedback
from management supervision.

Appraisal/PDP

16



What Did We Do?
• Our 30 day Consultation Period ran from 15th January 2018 to 13th

February 2018 and we identified 170 patients that we identified as
continuing care patients or currently under treatment. Some of these
were not sent letters (30) as they were domiciliary or child protection
patients

• As part of the consultation process we engaged with the Community
Learning Disability Team in Allerdale and Copeland, who agreed to
support patients known to their service through the engagement
process were needed

• We also contacted the local day centres to talk about our proposal
and to see again if they were able to offer  support to clients known
to their service:
- Catherine Mill, Day Centre
- Hensingham Day Services

• We sent out the following letter and feedback form to 140 patients

17



Plain English

18



Accessible Format

19



Feedback Form

20



Feedback Results
• We received written feedback from 63 patients (response

rate 45%).
• Would you continue to be a patient of the service?

88.9%

6.3%

3.2%

Yes

No

Not stated

21



Where would patients prefer to be
seen?

WCH

Cleator Moor

Either WCH/CM

Workington

Not Stated

22



Themes of Comments Received

23



Themes continued….
• Unsurprisingly transport came up as the most common theme/word.
• Comments were both positive and negative:

‘Transport & Ability to travel due to physical &mental ill health. I have
recently attended Cleator Moor.  Both services are excellent.’

‘Transport wise to CM has less buses. WCH no problems’
• Some people had already used the Cleator Moor and liked it:

‘I have taken my son to CM once and it worked really well. He saw
******* his usual dentist, parking was close to the entrance. Although

we live closer to WCH my son has extreme sensory issues and he
can’t stand lots of noise and people. CM was quiet and very relaxed

which makes a huge difference to his behaviour.’
• There was also some understandable uncertainty around a new clinic from

others:
‘Cleator Moor would not know where to go’

24



• Since the replies have been collated one of our dental
nurses who knows the patients has contacted the 77 who
we have had no response from to obtain their thoughts.

• Those who did respond have had clinic preference
recorded on their notes.

• Where particular issues were identified our dental nurse
has also made contact by phone to provide further
support (e.g. bus timetables, maps, amended
appointment times or whether support from third parties
might be needed (NWAS or Learning Disability Team for
example)

• All patients have now either had a letter or been
contacted by phone and have given a preferred location

25



Outcome/Recommendations
• The majority of patients have stated that they

would be happy to attend Cleator Moor as the
facilities are more suited to their needs

• All other patients have confirmed that they
would be happy to attend either Workington or
West Cumberland Hospital

• That service move is approved due to the
positive outcome of the engagement process

26



APPENDIX B
Substantial Variation Protocol

Introduction

This protocol has been developed to facilitate a common approach between NHS 
Organisations and the Health Scrutiny Committee of Cumbria County Council as to 
what constitutes a ‘substantial variation or development’ of health services. 

It is intended to promote early discussions on potential substantial variations as they 
are initially considered, prior to any formal consultation, so as to facilitate a more 
collaborative and joined up approach to substantial variations. The protocol is about 
working together, within the legal framework, to improve the experience of patients. 
Whilst concentrating on substantial variations or developments of health services, a 
recurrent theme is the need for the NHS Organisations and the Health Scrutiny 
Committee of Cumbria and opportunities to improve their care.

It is not intended that this protocol shall prejudice, conflict with or affect the exercise 
of the statutory functions, powers, rights, duties, responsibilities or obligations arising 
or imposed under any legislative provision enactment, bye-law or regulation 
whatsoever, nor shall it fetter the exercise of any discretion the Council or any NHS 
Organisation may have.

Legislative & Constitutional Context

Section 244 of the National Health Service Act 2006 authorises the Secretary of 
State to make regulations in relation to health scrutiny. 

Regulation 23 of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards 
and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 (The Regulations) place an obligation on 
NHS Organisations to consult with the Council where they are considering any 
proposal for substantial developments or substantial variations to health services 
other than where a decision must be made as a result of the risk to safety or welfare 
of patients or staff. 

The Council may issue a report to the Secretary of State where:

a. the Council is not satisfied that consultation on any proposal has been 
adequate in relation to content or time allowed;

b. the Council is not satisfied that the reasons given by the NHS 
Organisation not to consult are adequate; or

c. the Council considers that the proposal would not be in the interests of 
the health service in its area.

27



Other than in relation to the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation 
Trust the Council has delegated its role in relation to the above regulations to 
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee (CHSC). This Protocol shall not apply in relation 
to the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust whose 
substantial variations shall be addressed in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

Stage 1 - Substantial variation determination  procedure

There is no definition within the Regulations of what constitutes a substantial 
variation or development and as a result proposals for service change should be 
discussed with the CHSC at an early stage to attempt to reach a common position 
between the NHS Organisation and CHSC where possible. 

Without limiting the previous paragraph the parties will, where appropriate, use the 
following procedure:

1. When an NHS Organisation develops or is made aware of a proposed 
variation which may be substantial it shall advise the CHSC as soon as 
possible. 

2. The NHS Organisation shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, provide 
the CHSC with such information as is reasonably necessary to allow it to 
form a view on whether a change is substantial.

3. Both parties shall then attempt to form a common position on whether 
the variation is substantial. In deciding whether a change is a substantial 
variation the NHS Organisation and the CHSC will consider:

 Whether there is a major change to services experienced by patients 
and future patients; 

 the impact of the change upon patients, carers, the community, other 
services and the public who use a service, or may use it in the 
future;

 whether the majority of patients using the service would experience 
a significant material change in how they receive that service, 
particularly in terms of access or location

4. Where, following the parties assessment, the NHS Organisation notifies 
the CHSC that it considers that the variation not to be substantial, but 
the Council considers the variation is substantial the parties shall follow 
the resolution procedure below with a view to resolving the 
disagreement. 

28



Relevant factors 

The NHS Organisations and CHSC have agreed that the following factors may be 
relevant in determining the nature of a variation:

Characteristics likely to diminish 
defining proposals as substantial

Characteristics likely to increase 
defining proposals as substantial 

Where questions are about quality
 Area of proven practice with robust 

clinical governance and risk 
assessment arrangements

 Proposal not tried and tested 
 Conflict or disagreement Ethical 

issues 
 Where issues of quality, or choice vs. 

access need to be balanced
Groups affected and nature of impact
 Patients do not consider proposals 

significant 
 Proposals will have positive impact on 

patients and carers 
 Proposals to increase 

capacity/access/address any adverse 
travel implications

 Proposal is for a short or temporary 
duration

 Small number of patients / or low 
proportion of a particular group 
affected

 Patients consider proposals 
significant 

 Proposals will have varying impact on 
different constituencies 

 Proposals increase inequalities in 
access to services

 Proposal is for a permanent change 
to the service

 Large number of patients affected, or 
all/most of a particular group of 
patients affected. 

Wider implications:
 Adverse impact on patients groups 
 Lack of cohesion with other NHS or 
 community strategies 
 Widening of inequalities 
 Cumulative effect 
 Effect on wider community 

Climate of opinion
 Clinical support for proposal
 Support from community and 

patients through robust community 
and stakeholder engagement at all 
stages 

 Proposals specifically address 
concerns e.g. transport provision and 
home support for day surgery 

 Proposal based on need for change 
and agreement on way forward 

 Lack of clinical consensus 
 High level of opposition, especially 

from patients and public, concerns 
not addressed, inadequate 
community engagement 

 Rationale for proposal not clear 

29



Stage 2 -Substantial Variation Implementation Procedure 

Where the parties agree that a proposed variation is substantial the NHS 
Organisation shall produce a draft variation plan which it shall submit to the CHSC 
for consideration. The CHSC will provide comments to the NHS Organisation which 
will then consider the comments and go out to consultation formally with the relevant 
stakeholders in accordance with the relevant legislation.

The timetable for consideration of the drafts shall, unless otherwise agreed, be:

Action Timing
Submission of draft variation plan 
to the Council

As soon as possible following determination that 
the change is substantial, but in any event within 
[2] weeks.

Consideration and initial 
comments by the Council

Comments & recommendations to be provided 
within [4] weeks of submission of plans.

NHS Organisation to review 
comments and recommendations 
and provide feedback on 
changes

Feedback to the Council on comments and 
recommendations within [2] weeks of receipt of 
comments. 

In certain instances the NHS Organisation may request the proposed variation be 
implemented on a temporary basis whilst consultation is undertaken, if this is agreed 
by the Committee this should be for a maximum of 6 months with any proposal to 
make the variation permanent to come back to the Committee before the end of that 
period.

Where the NHS Organisation chooses not to implement a recommendation or 
comment on the adequacy of the proposed consultation by the CHSC the parties 
shall follow the resolution procedure set out below.  

Stage 3 – Consultation on the Substantial Variation

The NHS Organisation will carry out its public consultation providing details to the 
CHSC to allow for appropriate engagement by the Committee. Once the consultation 
has been completed the NHS Organisation will report the results of the consultation 
back to the CHSC with its response and proposed next steps.

Ifat this stage the CHSC feel that the proposal would not be in the interests of the 
health service in its area the parties shall follow the resolution procedure set out 
below.  

Resolution procedure 

This section sets out the process which the NHS Organisation and CHSC will go 
through in order to resolve disagreements over whether a change is substantial and 
over changes recommended and comments made by the CHSC on draft variation 
plans. 

30



Should the NHS Organisation and the CHSC fail to reach agreement on any of the 
matters discussed above either party may:

1. Send to the other a [form/letter] setting out the area of disagreement and 
that party’s position in relation to it. The [form/letter] shall propose not 
less than three dates for a meeting to discuss the dispute with the other 
party.

2. The Chair of the CHSC and the relevant senior officer of the NHS 
Organisation shall meet within 28 days of the receipt of the [form/letter] 
to discuss the disagreement in further detail. 

3. Should an agreed position not be reached within 7 days of the meeting 
referred to at paragraph 2, above, the parties may make proposals for 
further negotiations or, if no proposals are received or accepted, this 
protocol will be considered exhausted and the NHS Organisation may 
take a decision on how to proceed. The CHSC will then make a decision 
on whether or not to refer the matter to the Secretary of State.

The parties shall agree minutes of dispute meetings which may be disclosed to the 
Secretary of State, other competent bodies or in accordance with any other 
obligation to disclose by either party. 

31



NHS Organisation advises CHSC of 
potential variation which may be 

substantial

Both parties attempt to form a common 
position on whether the variation is 

substantial.

Where the NHS Organisation chooses 
not to implement a recommendation or 

comment of the CHSC may decide to 
refer to the SOS (following resolution 

procedure)

Agree

Disagree

If, parties cannot reach consensus and 
NHS Organisation decides to go ahead 

without consultation the CHSC may 
decide to refer to the SOS (following 

resolution procedure)

NHS Organisation submit a draft 
variation plan to the CHSC for 
consideration CHSC to provide 

comments and recommended changes 
to the draft variation plan. 

NHS Organisation can accept or reject 
the comments from CHSC

Accept

Reject

NHS Organisation undertakes 
Consultation reporting the results back 
to the CHSC with their response to the 

consultation 

If following the consultation the CHSC 
considers that the proposed change still 

would not be in the interests of the 
health service in its area it may decide 

to refer to the SOS (following resolution 
procedure)

St
ag
e 
1

St
ag
e 
2

St
ag
e 
3

32


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Specialist Dental Services - Proposal to Relocate
	Specialist Dental Services - Appendix A
	Specialist Dental Services - Appendix B


